1977

# Salt Lake County v. Teresa Jean Ramoselli : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE  
OF THE CASE

The case being appealed is a condemnation suit which was initiated by plaintiff Salt Lake County to acquire property for park and recreation purposes in the vicinity of 900 East 6400 South in Salt Lake County, Utah, owned by defendant Teresa Jean Ramoselli.

Defendant, in answering plaintiff's Complaint, denied there was a public necessity for the acquisition, denied that the contemplated use of the property being condemned was public in nature as defined by law, and also, denied that the proposed project was located in a manner consistent with the greatest public good and the least private injury. (R. 10-11)

## DISPOSITION BELOW

The District Court of Salt Lake County, the Honorable Stewart M. Hanson, Sr., District Judge presiding, decreed that Salt Lake County was unentitled to condemn, denied immediate occupancy although a Motion for an Order of Immediate Occupancy was not even before the Court for determination at the trial, and also, dismissed plaintiff's Complaint in condemnation.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Reversal of the District Court's Order dismissing plaintiff's Complaint in condemnation and a remand of the case to the District Court for trial on the issue of just condemnation.

## STATEMENT OF FACTS

Salt Lake County filed its Complaint in condemnation with the District Court of Salt Lake County on March 4, 1974. The purpose was to acquire by eminent domain approximately 11.63 acres more or less of property owned by defendant Ramoselli in the vicinity of 900 East and 6400 South in Salt Lake County, Utah, for a park and recreation area. (R. 2-3) The Complaint in condemnation was initiated pursuant to a Resolution of Condemnation passed unanimously by the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake County on December 24, 1973. (R. 5-6)

Defendant Ramoselli answered plaintiff's Complaint by among other things denying plaintiff's entitlement to condemn, denying there was a public necessity for the acquisition, denying that the con-

templated use was public in nature, as defined in law, and also, denying that the proposed park and recreation area project was located in a manner consistent with the greatest public good and the least private injury. (R. 10-12)

By stipulation, the case was bifurcated for separate trial on the issue of plaintiff's entitlement to condemn and the issue of just compensation. (R. 34) The trial was held July 26-27, 1976, as a non-jury trial presided over by the Honorable Stewart M. Hanson Sr., District Judge. Both oral testimony and documentary evidence was adduced. At the conclusion of the trial the Court took the matter under advisement. That very day, July 27, 1976, the Court made and entered its Memorandum Decision. It recites in the second paragraph thereof as follows: "This was a proceeding by the County requesting the Court to determine that the plaintiff was entitled to the immediate use and occupancy of the defendant's property." However, as indicated above and as evidenced by the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law which were prepared by counsel for defendant, the question of immediate occupancy was not even before the Court. (R. 34) In its Memorandum Decision the District Court also found and concluded: "...there did not and does not exist as of March, 1974, when the action was filed, a genuine need for the condemnation of the defendant that a specific use of the property was

not and still has not been defined by the governing board of Salt Lake County and that funds have not been budgeted for the construction of any public project on the condemned lands, and there is no showing what the County intends to use the property for in the immediate, foreseeable future." The Court concluded by stating in the last sentence of its Memorandum Decision: "...that public necessity does not require or entitle the County to condemn and its motion for immediate occupancy is hereby denied." (R. 29-30)

The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as well as the Order On Entitlement Of Plaintiff To Condemn and Order of Dismissal were subsequently signed and entered of record on July 29, 1976. (R. 31-38)

It is the Order decreeing that Salt Lake County was unentitled to condemn and dismissing plaintiff's Complaint in condemnation which is the subject matter of this appeal.

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

#### THE ACQUISITION AND USE OF PROPERTY FOR PARK AND RECREATION PURPOSES IS UNQUESTIONABLY PUBLIC IN NATURE AS DEFINED BY LAW

In challenging Salt Lake County's entitlement to condemn

defendant Ramoselli asserted in her Answer that the contemplated use of the property for park and recreation purposes was not: "...public in nature as defined by law..." (R. 10) There is no question but that under the Utah Eminent Domain Statute, Chapter 34 of Title 78, U.C.A. 1953 as amended, the use to which property being acquired under eminent domain is put must be a use authorized by law. Defendant apparently abandoned this shot gun challenge to Salt Lake County's entitlement to condemn because nothing more was said about this in either the Court's Memorandum Decision or in the subsequent Findings, Conclusion and Order. There should be no doubt that the use of property for a public park and recreation area is in fact a public use authorized by law.

78-34-1 U.C.A. 1953 as amended provides in part:

78-34-1 Uses for which right may be exercised.  
--Subject to the provisions of this chapter, the right of eminent domain may be exercised in behalf of the following public uses;

(3) Public buildings and grounds for the use of any county, city or incorporated town.."

The Utah Legislature expressly authorized counties to acquire property for playgrounds and recreational facilities. Chapter 2, Title 11, U.C.A. 1953 as amended provides in part:

"11-2-1 Local authorities may designate and acquire property for playgrounds and recreational facilities. --The governing body of any city, town, school district or county may designate and set apart for use as playgrounds, athletic

fields, gymnasiums, public baths, swimming pools, camps, indoor recreation centers, television transmission and relay facilities, or other recreational facilities, any lands, buildings or personal property owned by such cities, towns, counties or school districts that may be suitable for such purposes; and may, in such manner as may be authorized and provided by law for the acquisition of lands or buildings for public purposes in such cities, towns, counties and school districts, acquire lands, buildings, and personal property therein for such use; and may equip, maintain, operate and supervise the same, employing such play leaders, recreation directors, supervisors and other employees as it may deem proper."

Also, among the other powers conferred upon County Commissioners, the Utah Legislature provided in 17-5-49 U.C.A. 1953 as amended that: "They may make such provision for the preservation of health in the county... as they may deem necessary...". And, in 17-5-50 U.C.A. 1953 as amended that: "They may do and perform all other acts and things required by law not in this title enumerated which may be necessary to the full discharge of the duties of the board."

The general rule is set forth in 26 Am. Jur. 2d - Eminent Domain, Sec. 60 at page 717. This section reads in part as follows:

"...Indeed, public parks in the densely populated section of large cities are so essential to the health and comfort of the people that they may unquestionably be established by the aid of eminent domain..."

See also Nichols on Eminent Domain, 3rd Ed. Sec. 5.5151 Parks.

There was and is no merit to defendant Ramoselli's challenge that the park and recreational use to which Salt Lake County intended devoting her property to be acquired

by eminent domain was a use public in nature as defined by law.

## POINT II

THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN DECREERING THAT SALT LAKE COUNTY WAS UNENTITLED TO CONDEMN DEFENDANT'S PROPERTY FOR PARK AND RECREATION USES AND IN DISMISSING PLAINTIFF'S COMPLAINT

It is well established that the scope of judicial review of administrative determinations in eminent domain proceedings is extremely narrow. While there are obvious differences between the acquisition by eminent domain of property for public roads and for public parks the analogy is nevertheless rather close. In this connection in the case of Tom of Perry vs Thomas, 82 Utah 159, 22 P 2d 343 (1933) this Honorable Court ruled as follows at page 165 of the Utah Reports, 22 P 2d page 345:

"...We are satisfied that under our statutes the public necessity or expediency for the opening of a street is a question for determination by the governing board of a municipality and that its conclusion in that respect properly expressed by ordinance or resolution is conclusive."

\* \* \* \* \*

Under powers thus delegated to municipal boards the necessity, expediency, or propriety of opening a public street or way is a political question, and in the absence of fraud, bad faith, or abuse of discretion the action of such board will not be disturbed by the courts..."

The Supreme Court of the United States has the same opinion that judicial review of administrative decisions to condemn a particular property or property interest

obtains only when it is alleged that the administrative decision is arbitrary, capricious or in bad faith. See in this connection United States v. Carmack, 329 U.S. 230, 243-244, 67 S. Ct. 252, 91 L. Ed. 209 (1946)

Nichols on Eminent Domain, Third Edition, in Vol 1, Sec. 411 (2) at pages 164-5 states:

"...Even when judicial review of the question of necessity is based upon alleged arbitrariness or excessiveness of the taking, it has been held that by virtue of the delegation of the power of eminent domain by the State to the condemnor there is necessarily left largely to the latter's discretion the location and area of the land to be taken. And one seeking to show that the taking has been arbitrary or excessive shoulders a heavy burden of proof in the attempt to persuade the Court to over-rule the condemnor's judgment."

The Resolution of Condemnation passed unanimously by the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake County upon which the Complaint in condemnation was based was certainly not fraudulent nor done in bad faith nor was it an abuse of discretion. Perhaps the best way to demonstrate that the District Court erred in decreeing that Salt Lake County was unentitled to condemn defendant Ramoselli's property for park and recreation uses is to invite attention to the events in chronological sequence, all of which are documented in the record, which preceded and gave rise to the Resolution of Condemnation.

First, a Master Plan for Salt Lake County was designed in February of 1965 by Williams, Cook and Macine (City and Regional Planning Consultants), as a general guide to the long-range future development of Salt Lake Valley. (See Exhibit 2-P) The red cross on Exhibit 2-P delineates the general location of defendant Ramoselli's property which is the very property Salt Lake County seeks to condemn. The green color symbol on the Exhibit indicates that this parcel is suggested as a park and/or recreation and open space area.

Second, on July 9, 1965, by unanimous official action, the Planning Commission of Salt Lake County passed a Resolution adopting the Master Plan referred to above. (See Exhibit 3-P) The concluding paragraph of the Resolution reads:

"NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: (1) that the Salt Lake County Planning Commission does adopt said Master Plan, consisting of the Master Plan Report, "Salt Lake Valley 1985" and its accompanying map as the official guide to planning the physical development of Salt Lake County, and directs that full use be made of the Plan toward this end, as provided by State and local laws; (2) that this Plan be given annual review for the purpose of amending it to reflect changing conditions in the County as they occur."

Third, on July 13, 1965, the County Commission ratified and concurred in the foregoing action of the Planning Commission. The letter of July 15, 1965, from the County Clerk to the County Planning Director, which is attached to Exhibit 3-P provides in part:

"The Board of County Commissioners, at its meeting held on Tuesday, July 13, 1965, ratified and concurred in the Salt Lake County Planning Commission's recent action of July 9, 1965, wherein they approved a Resolution Adopting Salt Lake County Master Plan."

Fourth, there is a design map of the Salt Lake County Recreation and Parks Department dated July 13,

1965. (See Exhibit 14-D) The Ramoselli property which is the subject matter of the condemnation proceeding is in the lower left hand corner of the map.

There is delineated on the Ramoselli property an area for court games, an area for parking and a swimming pool.

Fifth, there is another map entitled "Traverse for Proposed Park" dated December 3, 1970, drawn by the Salt Lake County Surveyor-Engineer. (See Exhibit 11-D)

On this map the Ramoselli property is circled in blue.

With reference to the Ramoselli property, Mr. Davis, Advance Planner for the Salt Lake County Recreation and Parks Department, testified that the Department plans were to develop it as a community park. His testimony in part is:

"Our imminent plans would be to develop that particular piece of property as a community park for the Cottonwood community. This means our plans would be to put tennis courts, picnic pavilions and the traditional types of other popular recreation park facilities you would see in other places in the County." (R. 64)

Sixth, in 1972, the Salt Lake County Recreation and

Parks Master Plan was promulgated. (See Exhibit 4-P) Page 69 of this Exhibit sets forth the needs of a community park and page 70 indicates that the South Cottonwood Community needs a community park, other park and tennis courts. On page 109 of this Exhibit the Ramoselli property is outlined in red and the legend indicates that this is the very site for a community park site.

Seventh, by December 15, 1972, the Big Cottonwood District Development Plan came into being. (See Exhibit 6-P) This is a further refinement of the Master Plan of 1969 and the Cottonwood District Development Plan of 1972. This plan was also drawn up by Williams & Moline, City and Regional Planning experts of San Francisco, California, shows the Ramoselli property circled in red. The legend indicates that the green coloring of the Ramoselli property delineates this property as a proposed park.

Eighth, on May 29, 1973, there was a special Planning Commission Meeting held to review the Cottonwood District Plan which had been prepared after three years of study by Williams & Moline, Planning Consultants. The minutes of this special meeting read in part as follows:

"Mr. Barnes explained that in 1965 Salt Lake County adopted a master plan for Salt Lake Valley. The master plan was of a general nature and to make it manageable the County

was divided into seven Planning Districts. It was the intention from the beginning to undertake future detailed studies of the Planning Districts with first emphasis on the more urbanized districts. The Big Cottonwood District is the first of these district plans and the first official amendment to the original plan..."

Ninth, on September 12, 1973, the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake County after notice of the hearing as prescribed by law and with little objection thereto officially adopted the Big Cottonwood District Development Plan. The Resolution by which the Plan was officially adopted reads in part as follows:

"~~Now~~, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners (and) that said Big Cottonwood Planning District Development Plan be and the same is adopted as an amendment to the general Salt Lake County Master Plan as a part of the official guide to planning the physical development and growth within the Big Cottonwood Planning District. And the Salt Lake County Commission directs that use of the plan be carried forward within the area as provided under the state and local laws and that this development plan may hereafter be amended and/or changed upon review, due notice after hearing and adoption by the County Commission to reflect the changing conditions in the Big Cottonwood Planning District as they may occur."

(See Exhibit 9-P)

Finally, on December 24, 1973, in culmination of all of the preceding events and zeroing in on the exact parameters of the Ramoselli property, the Board of County Commissioners of Salt Lake County adopted the Resolution of Condemnation which was the basis of Salt Lake County's Complaint in condemnation. The Resolution of Condemnation reads in part that:

"The public interest and necessity require the acquisition and completion by Salt Lake County, acting through its County Commissioners, of a public improvement to be used as a park and recreation area."

While, by clever cross-examination, every effort was made to twist and torture the testimony to infer that the only reason for acquiring the Ramosellis property was for parking space and to use the home thereon as a visitor's center for the adjoining Wheeler Historical Farm property which was acquired by negotiation and not by eminent domain, the message nevertheless came through loud and clear that the Ramosellis property was the suitable site for a community park. An example of the cross-examination referred to appears on pages 92-93 of the Record.

(By Mr. Campbell) Just the fact that I take it from your testimony on direct examination it is the position of the County Board that the property of the Ramosellis is needed in conjunction with the development of the Wheeler Historical Ranch, is that your testimony?

A. That it also-- There was another indication. In other words, that was part.

Q. I recall your testimony to be, in answer to your counsel in which he said, "Would you generally describe what purpose the property of the Ramosellis would be used for?" and your response was, "As part of the Wheeler Living Historical Farm." Then you went on also to say there would be a parking lot there, a visitors' center, and there maybe some tennis courts and other things. Is that right?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. I take it then from your testimony that the purpose for or if the Wheeler Historical Living Farm

concept were not there, and if that property wasn't going to be developed for that purpose the Ramoselli property would not be needed by Salt Lake County, is that correct?

A. No, that is not correct.

Later on the questions and answers showed that the primary purpose for acquiring the Ramoselli property

was for a park. On page 112 of the Record it reads:

Q. The use you need is primarily one of access?

A. The use would be primarily for Cottonwood Park facilities.

The testimony and documentary evidence in the record will not support the proposition that there was fraud,

and faith, or abuse of discretion on the part of the

County Commissioners in adopting the Resolution of Con-

demnation. Nor will the testimony and documentary

evidence in the record support the language in para-

graph 14 of the Findings of Fact that: "...the attempted

condemnation by Salt Lake County...is plainly and palpably

unreasonable and unsupported and constitutes a clear abuse

of legislative discretion.

### POINT III

THE LAW DOES NOT REQUIRE A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION TO HAVE ALL DEVELOPMENT MONEY APPROPRIATED AND COMPLETE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT PREPARED AND APPROVED PRIOR TO CONDEMNATION

The District Court's Decree that Salt Lake County was unentitled to condemn the Ramoselli property for park and recreation uses was based in part on the proposition that development funds had not been budgeted and

that complete plans and specifications for the develop-

ment on the property being condemned had not been prepared and approved.

The testimony of Ronald J. Day, Supervisor of the General Accounting Department in the Auditor's Office (R. 123-135) and Exhibit 15-P evidenced that funds for the acquisition of the Ramoselli property had in fact been budgeted.

As to development funds the practice of Salt Lake County has been not to budget development funds until such time as the property is acquired. The testimony of Charles Clawson Baugh detailed the practice in this regard. His testimony was in part as follows:

Q. Has the Parks and Recreation Department asked for any development funds for a Ramoselli Park?

A. No.

Q. Can you tell us why not?

A. Because we don't have the property and we haven't asked for any funds. We don't ask for funds unless we have the property, or have reason to believe we will very soon.

Q. Suppose the Court should see a great need for the acquisition of the land, is there any request for funds?

A. We would request in the next budget year, which would be for next year.

Q. When would that be?

A. The Auditor sends out forms in about August.

Q. August of which year?

A. Next month.

Q. That would be a request for next year?

A. Next year. (R. 151)

The applicable rule of law is set forth in 26 Am.

Jur. 2d - Eminent Domain, Sec. 117, at page 776:

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