1977

Salt Lake County v. Teresa Jean Ramoselli : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

The County is misled in its contention. To begin with, a decision of the U. S. Supreme Court on the federal substantive law of eminent domain has no sphere of influence before this Court in this Case; federal eminent domain proceedings have a setting that are legally and factually distinct and inapposite to the statutory process of condemnation extant in the State of Utah. Moreover, while we have no quarrel with the observation quoted from Nichols that judicial review on the question of public need is directed to particular aspects of the administrative decision by the public agency to condemn, the quotation in the County's Brief ignores the more definitive statement in Nichols under the same paragraph that:

"In every case, therefore, there is a judicial question whether the taking is of such a nature that it is or may be founded on a public necessity." 1 Nichols on Eminent Domain, §4.11 [2] p. 4-157.

The fact is that the County, in the case at hand, is confronted with a statute that confers upon District Court jurisdiction to ultimately resolve the question of public necessity

when that matter is placed in issue. 78-34-4 U.C.A. of the Eminent Domain Code declares, in part:

"Conditions precedent to taking - before property can be taken it must appear:

* * *

(2) That the taking is necessary to such use;

* * *." (Emphasis added)

Furthermore, 78-34-5, U.C.A. 1953 charges that when property is taken for public use, the project "must be located in a manner which will be most compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury". Such statutory provisos, although not cited by the County in its Brief, are not a mere penmanship exercise or an abstract vacuum without meaning. Rather, such legislation bestows upon the judiciary the full throat to determine whether an attempted condemnation expropriation is buttressed by public need. Such issue, accordingly, had proper standing before the District Court in this Case.

2. The Elementary Factors of Public Necessity.

The lower Court proceeded in this Case on the premise that the Resolution (Exhibit 1-P) of the County to condemn the Ramoselli property was presumptively valid and that such determination would not be set aside unless the evidence manifested fraud, bad faith, or a clear abuse of discretion on the part of the condemning agency. (R.49) That axiom is in accord with the controlling case precedent in this jurisdiction, Ogden City v. Stephens, 21 U.2d 336, 445 P.2d 703 (1968), and was unremarkable. The principle was never the

subject of contest on the part of Ramoselli herein; indeed, the Landowner supported the concept.

Ramoselli made no claim in this Cause that the condemnation suit was spawned on the winds of fraud or bad faith. Rather, the position of this Landowner was fastened to the precept that the attempted condemnation of the subject property by the County in this Proceeding was so fraught with conjecture and speculation as to planning and time of use and so afflicted by the lack of any rational basis that park use of the Ramoselli land would ever be realized, that fair minded men could only conclude that the County had manifestly abused its discretion in instituting this action.

There are several criteria which, at a minimum, must be met by the condemning body to satisfy the test of public need. To begin with, the principle for the use of the property must be spelled out by the condemnor with specificity. City of Helena v. DeWolf, 508 P.2d 122 (Mont. 1973). That is not to say that every square foot of the proposed project must be designed and described with infinite precision.^{2/} But it does mean that the condemning body cannot, as it did in this Case, walk into the courtroom with a cavalier sketch, (Exhibit P-16) of a possible use of a citizen's property which had been

^{2/} However, as generally noticed through hundreds of condemnation suits brought in this State, many of which have been before this Honorable Court, in practically every suit (whether for highway, school, or reservoir purposes) the project use has been designed and redesigned over several years with great care and detail, encompassing right-of-way drawings, engineering plans, and working drawings, as well as specifications.

prepared barely 18 days before the time of trial, which had not been reviewed much less approved by the County Parks Commission, and which had not been seen, approved, or adopted, even in concept, by the governing Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake County. How, we would query, is the County to determine whether the property of Ramoselli is needed for the public use until reasonably defined plans are developed, reviewed, approved, and adopted, which dictate that need? The question provides its own answer.

Secondly, there must be a showing that the property of the Landowner is required for the public use at the time of condemnation or at the latest, in the reasonably immediate future. Necessity, by inherent definition, implies a known and defined date of usage. The overwhelming body of case law, uncontroverted by the County in its Brief, is to the effect that the governmental body is bound to show a need of the condemned property of either present or near future proportions, as a condition precedent to the expropriation. State Highway Board v. Pratt, 250 A.2d 726 (Vt. 1969). As stated by the Supreme Court of Michigan in Board of Education v. Baczewski, 340 Mich. 265, 65 N.W.2d 810:

"In condemnation proceedings in this State petitioner should prove that the property will either be immediately used for the purpose for which it is sought to be condemned or within a period of time that the jury determines to be the near future or a reasonably immediate use." (Emphasis added).

Nichols, in his work on Eminent Domain, describes an attempt to condemn property for a use, the time of which is open and undefined, as naked "speculation and conjecture" and cannot be sustained. 1 Nichols on Eminent Domain, §4.11, p. 4-211 (3rd Ed.). Necessity in eminent domain, is that which exists "now or in the near future". Nichols on Eminent Domain, Ibid.

Thirdly, a showing is required that the proposed use is reasonably capable of being realized and if the evidence reveals that there is no economic basis for funding of the proposed use, the condemnation complaint must fail. Winegar, School Board, et al v. Aires, 371 Pa. 242, 89 A.2d 521 (1952). In finding that public necessity did not exist under a Montana statute similar to that of 78-34-4(2) U.C.A., the Montana Supreme Court stated in City of Helena v. DeWolf, supra:

"The burden of demonstrating necessity rests upon the condemnor who must establish a prima facie case to justify the taking. * * *

"We conclude that 'necessity' must be shown as a reasonable need with foreseeable ability to complete. Under the facts of this case we do not find a showing of reasonably foreseeable ability to complete. Defendants' going business would be destroyed, the property acquired, and simply held for that indefinite future when it just might be needed. * * *." (Emphasis ours)

We do not argue that the County is under a mandate to show that its pockets are laden with coin of the realm so as to instantaneously bankroll all facets of the proposed use herein. But it was submitted to the trial Court and we do

maintain that there must be some plausible manifestation that the proposed use is susceptible of capital funding from a known source at the time of condemnation or in the reasonably immediate future. Elsewise, the whole system of property rights in this country, so fundamental to the entire social order, would be open game for the ambitious and future schemes of a government empire building. The Government is proscribed from engaging in land "speculation" by the narrow and strictly construed power to condemn a citizen's property. Moyle, et al v. Salt Lake City, 111 Utah 201, 176 P.2d 882 (1947); Bertagnole, et al v. Baker, supra.

POINT II.

THE BURDEN OF PROOF OF EVIDENCING PUBLIC NECESSITY TO WARRANT THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN RESTS WITH THE CONDEMNOR, SALT LAKE COUNTY.

This Court is committed to the proposition that the burden of proving public necessity in condemnation rests with that party who seeks to exercise the power. In Tanner v. Provo Bench Canal & Irr. Co., supra, this Court, writing through Frick, C. J., stated the rule to be:

"The burden of showing necessity and public use is upon petitioner. The burden showing the damages which the owner will suffer rests on him."

See also Monetaire Mining Co. v. Columbus Rexall Consol. Mines Co., 53 Utah 413, 174 Pac. 172 (1918)

We would not debate the concept that the resolution of condemnation adopted by the public agency creates, in most circumstances, an evidentiary presumption in favor of the power to condemn. But that presumption is rebuttable, and when rebutted by competent evidence to the contrary on the issue of public necessity (as was the occasion in the Case at hand), the power to condemn is jeopardized if the condemning body does not fulfill its burden of proof on the issue of public necessity as defined by law.

The failing of the County herein to demonstrate, under the requisite principles of public necessity as set out in Point I of this Brief, public necessity for the Ramoselli property presently or in the immediate foreseeable future, required that the District Court dismiss the Complaint herein. Such dismissal was entered and is to be affirmed on review.

POINT III.

THE COUNTY FAILED TO MANIFEST AT TRIAL
ANY DEFINED USE OF THE RAMOSELLI PROPERTY
PRESENTLY OR IN THE REASONABLY IMMEDIATE FUTURE.

It does not take a divining rod to ascertain the basis of the Findings of the lower Court that the Complaint of the County be dismissed for failure to show public need of the Ramoselli property. The insipid and ephemeral evidence submitted on the question by the Plaintiff made the

conclusion inescapable that the statutory mandate and decisional precedent of this Jurisdiction on public necessity had not been proven. It was not even a close call.

First, as to any plans for a proposed use of the condemned property, the short and simple answer is that there were no plans. The best shot of the County in that regard was in the form of Exhibit 16-P. While the property was being tested as of the date of condemnation in March of 1974, 16-P was prepared barely two weeks before the date of trial in late July of 1976. The Exhibit had only been seen by staff and non-policy personnel of the Parks Commission. No one in a policy position even at Parks Commission level had given approval to it. The governing Board of County Commissioners knew nothing of it, whatsoever, and a fortiori, 16-P had never been approved or adopted. It was admitted in evidence as a "preliminary sketch" of a possible use of the Ramoselli property for park purposes. A casual survey of 16-P prompts the conclusion that the drawing could have been constructed by an ordinary layman inside of an hour. The Exhibit does not begin to rise to the quantum and quality of proof so essential to an ascertainment of public need.

But the disease in the County's case did not stop there. It is uncontested that even were it assumed, for the sheer sake of argument, the existence of a defined and reasonably articulated plans for park use of the Ramoselli property, the County had no notion, at all, as to the time when any possible use would be realized. It was not a question of

the use being in the future of 2 years or of the remote future of 5, 10, or 25 years, it was, rather, the evidence before the trial Court that there was no time established at all. It is not surprising that under that set of facts, the District Court found that any use of the subject property by the County was idle speculation and conjecture.

The lack of a funding source to achieve any possible use of the condemned property, whether that use be speculative or real, was the final flaw in the County's position before the trial Court. This was not a case that the capital funding, while not available eo instanti, would be forthcoming from the County Commission in due course. It was not even a case that the capital funding would be available from the County Commission in the distant or remote future. Rather, the testimony before the trial Court was that there were no monies available at all, that the budgets of the County Parks Commission had been cut in recent years and the Parks Department would have to embark upon a search for possible federal grant funds or private, philanthropic donations to underwrite any park use of the Ramoselli property. The issue of adequate capital funding, standing alone, might not be sufficient to deny in every instance, the entitlement to condemn herein. But taken with the plethora of testimony herein on the lack of any defined use along with the absence of any time of usage, the evidence on the total void of funding merely confirmed the fact that the attempt to acquire

the Ramoselli property by condemnation was nothing more than fanciful speculation by the County and was destined to failure.

1. Other Maps and Master Plans Introduced by the County.

In an attempt to avert the shortfall of the County's position on public need in this case, it introduced three general master plans of Salt Lake County, or parts thereof. Such drawings provided no panacea whatsoever to avoid the result reached by the lower Court. The 1985 plan of Salt Lake Valley (Exhibit 2-P) and the County Parks Master Plan of 1972 (Exhibit 4-P) were admitted as nothing more than a general guide-on to further, future, and more particularized, specific planning. Those generalized drawings are theoretical in character only and are without weight in the decisional process of public necessity in this Case. The County cannot, in this Proceeding, brace itself on the element of public need by using a 1985 and 1972 conceptual plans for Salt Lake Valley as a crutch. The County cites no case precedent in which such general, theoretical concepts have ever formed the basis to condemn specific property.

The same fate is in store for Exhibit 6-P, offered by the County as the Big Cottonwood District Development Plan. It, too, was a guide for future consideration of more particularized planning and in no way cures the defect in the showing of public need herein. County Commissioner, Dunn, in Exhibit 7-P, stated on the record, when the concept of 6-P was adopted, that such adoption was not "the

implementation" of the Plan, but merely "set forth a goal * * * if the plan is followed", and that the areas relating to "golf courses, or parks or schools, etc., may or may not eventually come about". Commissioner Dunn concluded with a statement that such a plan as 6-P was conceptual only and that the County had "neither the means nor the availability to necessarily implement all of the programs" therein.

The theoretical Master Plan concepts were unentitled to any weight in the decisional process on the question of public necessity to condemn the particular property of Ramoselli herein.

2. Claimed Procedure for Land Acquisition by the County Parks Commission.

The County attempted to justify the absence of any reasonably defined plans for the possible use of the Ramoselli property presently or in the immediate foreseeable future, on the lament that the normal operating procedure of the Parks Commission is to first acquire property and then prepare plans for its ensuing utilization. It claims that adequately defined plans, target date for use, and funding sources would be futile until the Parks Commission was assured that the property was secure. With regard to the wisdom (or lack thereof) of Park Commission procedure in acquiring, by voluntary purchase, private property and only then laying plans for the use of such voluntarily acquired property, we make no comment. But as to that property which

the County seeks to acquire involuntarily by force of the eminent domain power, the answer is swift. The County is unentitled to condemn the property of a citizen and thereafter to sit in the councils of government and decide how, when, and if that property is to be used. Such conduct, as evidenced in this Cause, is nothing short of rank land speculation, is the antithesis of the fundamental system of property rights in this Country, and constitutes a clear abuse of discretion on the part of the Plaintiff herein. No other public agency of Government has been heard or forced to make such an argument before this Court.

POINT IV

THE COUNTY PARKS COMMISSION IS UNENTITLED TO CONDEMN PROPERTY FOR A USE IN THE UNDEFINED FUTURE.

The County is heard to contend in Point IV of its Brief, p. 17, that the Parks Commission of Salt Lake County is entitled to condemn property for future use. Cases are cited from other jurisdictions suggesting that the property may be acquired for future use up to 15 or 20 years from the date of taking. However, no decisions of this Court are cited for such a sweeping proposition; indeed, that is not the law of the case in this State, either by decision or statute.

78-34-4(2) U.C.A. is the litmus test for public need and that, as shown by the overwhelming weight of authority, requires a showing of use at the present or in the immediate foreseeable future. (See authorities and discussion set out in Point I, page 11 of this Brief).

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